MEMORANDUM

TO:  
Mr. William D. Gilmore, PE, Director, Ecosystem Enhancement Program






And


Mr. S. Kenneth Jolly, Chief, Regulatory Division, Wilmington District

THRU:  Program Assessment and Consistency Group (PACG)

FROM:  PACG-Technical Committee
DATE:
September 12, 2006


Reissued 8 October 2008
SUBJECT:  Expanded service area for mitigating impacts within the Lower Catawba River Basin (HUC 03050103)
In accordance with the request made by EEP on October 8 2008, the PACG-TC understands that securing suitable mitigation in the Catawba 03 sub-basin continues to be problematic.  Accordingly, the PACG-TC agrees that the expanded service area described below may be used for impacts occurring in the Catawba 03 sub-basin provided the following conditions can be met:
I. Expanded Service Area Boundary.  The new service area will be comprised of the entirety of the South Fork Catawba River Basin (HUCs 03050102 or Catawba 02) and Catawba 03 and the southern portion of the Upper Catawba River Basin (HUC 03050101 or Catawba 01).  We considered both USGS watershed and USEPA Level IV Ecoregion boundaries when developing this expanded service area.  While this expanded service area does extend into three separate ecoregions (Southern Inner Piedmont, Southern Outer Piedmont and Carolina Slate Belt), the majority of the service area is within the Southern Outer Piedmont Ecoregion.  Areas of the Southern Inner Piedmont Ecoregion that either fell within Catawba 02 or were part of a 14 digit hydrologic unit within Catawba 01 that crossed into the Southern Outer Piedmont were included in the expanded services area to better allow EEP to develop mitigation using a watershed approach.  All areas of the Carolina Slate Belt included in the expanded service area are currently part of Catawba 03.

II. Use of Expanded Service Area.  This expanded service area will only be used in providing mitigation for impacts occurring within Catawba 03.  Mitigation for impacts occurring within Catawba 01 and Catawba 02 should be developed within those respective basins unless otherwise specified by the Corps in a separate memorandum, agreement or permit condition.

To provide a truly programmatic approach to resolving this issue, all mitigations assets within this expanded service must be considered equal.  EEP need not distinguish on a project-by-project basis, which HUC or ecoregion the mitigation will come from.  EEP will however, identify in its acceptance letter that the mitigation will come from the expanded service area.  Corps and NCDWQ project managers should consider, when deciding whether EEP assets constitute adequate compensatory mitigation for a given project within Catawba 03, that most of those assets are from outside Catawba 03.     

Mitigation assets from this expanded service area can be used to meet compensatory mitigation requirements that EEP has already agreed to provide.  However, mitigation assets should be debited at a 2:1 ratio compliant with previous guidance form the PACG on use of credits from adjacent cataloging units.  The Corps and NCDWQ, when determining whether EEP assets would adequately offset impacts, made its original permit decisions based on the assumption that those mitigation assets would be provided within Catawba 03.  When the Corps and/or NCDWQ consider mitigation from adjacent HUCs adequate to offset a particular impact, it is typically at some higher ratio than if that mitigation were from the same HUC.  This is not a “penalty” but a normal practice based in guidance, experience and professional judgment.  
III.   Term of Expanded Service Area.  This expanded service area guidance will remain in effect for two years from October 8, 2008, the date of its re-issuance.  It will apply to all mitigation requirements accepted by EEP within the two-year period.  During this time, EEP should continue to search for mitigation opportunities within Catawba 03 and should continue to explore other acceptable solutions such as implementation of BMPs and/or preservation of existing resources.  If, at end of 2 year period, other adequate opportunities exist within Catawba 03, this agreement will be terminated.

Please contact Mr. Scott McLendon, PACG chair if you have any questions regarding this information.
